
August 27, 2013 
 
 
 

RFP #Y13-606-PD 
 

Multi-Jurisdictional Disparity Study 
 

ADDENDUM NO.2 
 
 
The above Request for Proposal is amended as follows: 
 

 
1. Change Request for Proposals Acceptance to read: Accepted up to 2:00 PM (local 

time), Tuesday, September 10, 2013. 
 

2. Questions and Answers: 
 

Question: Do the Project Expenditure Report form and the Relationship Disclosure 
form need to be notarized by a Florida notary or can it be notarized in another state? 
 
Answer:  A notary from any state can notarize these documents.  
 
Question:  Do out of state companies bidding on this project need to have an 
authorized agent in Florida in order to bid? 
 
Answer:  No 
 
Question: Page 13 and 14 of the RFP request project examples that examined four 
years or more of data.  Would it be acceptable if proposers submitted some 
examples of disparity studies that examined three years of data but still met all of the 
other criteria? 
 
Answer: The minimum requirements of the RFP shall remain as written. 
 
Question:  Page 14 of the RFP requests that proposers submit “complete” 
documents for all submitted examples of disparity studies.  Complete documents or 
reports for disparity studies can be hundreds of pages in length.  Could those study 
reports be submitted electronically on CDs enclosed with the proposals?   
 
Answer:  These may be submitted on CDs or thumb drives and must be provided 
with each copy of the proposal. 
 
Question:  Page 25 of the RFP defines the market area for Orange County as the 
Orlando Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA).  Typically, and most appropriately, the 
relevant geographic area for a disparity study is determined by the data.  
Specifically, it is determined by where an agency spent the majority of its contracting 
dollars during the study period.  Is it acceptable for proposers to propose that we 
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determine the relevant geographic market area as part of the study as opposed to 
assuming that it is the Orlando MSA? 
 
Answer:  The proposers shall identify the relevant market area as a result of the 
research provided. 
 
Question:  The RFP indicates that the Project Manager (PM) must have at least 10 
years of experience performing disparity studies.  Would it be acceptable  for the 
proposed PM to have 8 years of experience conducting disparity studies if that 
individual has been involved with more than 20 disparity studies during that time and 
meets all of the other criteria for a PM that are described in the RFP? 
 
Answer:  This minimum 10 year requirement shall remain as written. 
 
Question:  Does each agency that will be involved with the disparity study maintain 
the following data for both prime contracts and all subcontracts awarded during the 
study period (specifically, all subcontracts awarded to minority and women owned 
firms and subcontracts awarded to non- minority and women owned firms: 
a. Contractor name and contract information (address, and phone number). 
b. Contract date (prime contract only). 
c. Work Description. 
d. Funding source (federal funding or state/local funding; prime contract only). 
e. Original contract award or budgeted amounts. 
f. Paid to date amounts. 
g. Change order or amendment amounts. 

 
Answer:  Orange County (yes to all). 
               Orange County Public Schools (yes to all) 
           Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (yes to all) 
               City of Orlando (yes to all, maintained in B2G) 
 
Question:  Are the above data for each agency maintained electronically or in hard 
copy format? 
 
Answer:  Orange County (the above data is available in both electronic and hard                

copy format). 
                City of Orlando (the above data is maintained in B2G Monitoring System) 
                Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (the above data is available 

electronically) 
                Orange County Public Schools (The above data is available electronically) 
 
Question: Page 15, Item 3, Technical Approach, states “proposers will provide 
detailed narratives describing its data collection… Including a review of available 
directories of certified M/WBE, and firms, and bidders lists, if any..”  For each 
Consortium member, please clarify the following. 
 
a. The format (such hard copy, Microsoft Excel, databases) and location (such as 

centralized vs. decentralized) of bidder data, as well as firms submitting 
responses to proposals for services.   
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b. Is race/ethnicity and gender tracked and maintained on firms that bid and/or 
submit proposals (construction and services)?  Is this information maintained on 
unsuccessful bidders? 

c. Is contact information (specifically email addresses, phone number, local 
address) on certified M/WBEs, firms that submit bids and/or proposals? 

d. As far as certification, is expired and current certification tracked and 
maintained? 

 
Answer: Orange County (a. The format shall be databases and the location shall be 
decentralized; b. Yes this information is maintained; c. Yes this information is 
maintained; d. Yes this information is tracked and maintained). 
 
City of Orlando (a. Bid tabs available – hard copy, excel and is centralized; b. 
Procurement: City Certification indentified w/bid, proposal; c. yes; d. yes, database  
 
Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (The Authority maintains directories of its DBE 
and ACBE firms, MWBE and LDB firms as well as current certifications. Bidder data 
is held in electronic format, bidder data (not awarded can be obtained).  Data is held 
with gender and race identifiers.  Yes most contact data is available.  Not sure if 
non- minority contact data is secured). 
 
Orange County Public Schools (a. Bidder data is available in hardcopy.  Te bidder 
data for Requests for Qualifications (Construction/AE Services) is available at the 
district’s office on Magic Way.  The bidder data for solicitations for goods & services 
(non-construction/non-architectural) is available at the Ronald Blocker Educational 
Leadership Center; b. Race/ethnicity and gender is not on firms that bid and/or 
submit proposals. However, some of the information can be gleaned from submitted 
proposals as firms are asked whether they are a minority or woman owned business 
enterprise or a local developing firm.  Race/ethnicity and gender data may be 
available for certified MWBE/LDBs who submit proposals, as a copy of their 
certification is requested; c. The contact information on certified MWBEs who submit 
bids is available in the Access database maintained by the Office of Business 
Opportunity; d. Yes, expired and current certification is tracked and maintained.  
 
 
Question:  Page 23, Item 1, Requirement, states that the analysis will be based on 
five (5) contracting areas.  Please clarify how the description of services/contracting, 
such as procurement/contract codes, description based on services provided is 
tracked and maintained.  Are these contracting areas tracked and maintained for 
both awards and payments. 
 
Answer:  (actually page 24) Yes these are tracked and maintained for both awards 
and payments. 
 
Page 25, Item C, Deliverables, states “procurement of services from the various 
departments include… General Business Services,…Furniture, Fixtures and 
equipment (FF&E)”.  In completing more than 175 disparity studies, clients have 
defined these categories differently.  Thus, please clarify what types of services are 
defined as General Business Services, as well as commodities for FF&E. 
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 Answer:  Construction services, ie providing the goods, supplier, as opposed to not 
installing the goods, contractor.  If the goods are installed, then they would be 
considered construction contracting. 
 
Question:  Page 26, Item D.1, Additional Requirements/Information states “In 
addition, with respect to the federal and LDB programs,  comply with any 
requirements of USDOT concerning receipt of federal funds pursuant to 49 CFR Part 
23 and Part 26”  Is LDB information tracked for firms, contracts awarded, bid 
tabulations?  Does the contract data indicate federal dollars/funds?   
 
Answer:  Yes Orange County tracks all of this information, as does the Airport 
Authority. 
 
Question:  Page 26, Item D.2., Additional Requirements/Information states “accurate 
dollar figures.. including totals for specific type of contracts (i.e., sole source, unable 
to meet goal requirement, ect.)”  Please clarify if the following is maintained on 
contract data.  Applies to each Consortium member. 
a. Bid Item Number 
b. Contract Number 
c. Vendor ID (Unique Vendor Identification Number) 
d. Contract Name 
e. Contractor Address 
f. Owner’s race/ethnicity 
g. Owner’s gender 
h. Type of Contract (such as sole source) 
i. Contract Goal Percentage 
j. Percentage of Goal Attained 
k. Award Date (month, date and year) 
l. Award Amount 
m. Payment Amounts or Final Payment Amount 
n. Description of Project (detailed enough to identify horizontal vs. Vertical 

construction, ect.) 
o. Percentage of dollars that were federally funded.  Where applicable 
p. Description indicating the funding source, as in item o 
 
Answer: Orange County (yes items a through p are maintained). 
 
Question:  Is the contract number maintained in the expenditure data so that the 
contracts can be linked back to the payments? 
 
Answer: Orange County (Directly, no.  The Contract number is associated with the 
encumbrance (PO or DO).  The expenditure (payment) is associated with the 
PO/DO.  We would have to combine the payment information to the originating 
PO/DO, then from there get the contract number.  Airport Authority, yes. 
 
Question:  Page 31, Item L, Program Comparison, states “programs at all of the 
following per counties … Palm Beach, Jacksonville”.  Please clarify if the program 
review for Jacksonville should be for Duval County, City of Jacksonville, or both? 
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Answer:  Duval County is the City of Jacksonville, it is a metro form of government.  
 
Question:  Please provide more information on how your vendor-related data (such 
as certification directories, vendors in contract and/or procurement systems) is 
maintained (centralized vs. decentralized), format (hard copy, centralized database, 
Microsoft Excel, or can be easily imported into a database format).  Please clarify if 
the following is available.  Applies to each Consortium member. 
a. Unique vendor identification number, such as FEIN, Vendor ID. 
b. Vendor (Firm) name 
c. Vendors local address or headquarter 
d. Vendors local or headquarter city 
e. Vendors local or headquarter state 
f. Vendors local or headquarter Zip code 
g. Vendors local or headquarter County 
h. Contact person of the firm 
i. Contact persons telephone number 
j. Contact persons facsimile number 
k. Contact persons email address 
l. Business owners gender. (certified and non-certified) 
m. Business owners ethnicity. (certified and non-certified) 
n. Business owners race. (certified and noncertified) 
o. Business owners certification (e.g. MBE, WBE, DBE, LDB). 
p. Procurement codes that describes the firms primary line of business 
q. Text description of the firm’s primary line of business 
r. Certification of the firm. (e.g., MBE, WBE, DBE, LDB) 
s. Vendor is a not-for-profit 
t. Vendor is a disabled veteran 
u. Vendor is a government agency or institution of higher education 
v. Vendor is an employee 

 
Answer:  Orange County (Yes all items are available except items p, s, u and v.   
               Certification directories – centralized database – VOW database created  
               ISS.  Data will be put in format for your usage.  Vendor registration –  
               Centralized database created by ISS.  Data will be put in format for your  
               usage). 
               City of Orlando ( see attachment a) 

a. JDE 
b. JDE, E-supplier and B2G Contract List Report 
c. JDE, E-Supplier and B2G Contract List Report 
d. JDE, E-Supplier and B2G Contract List Report 
e. JDE, E-Supplier and B2G Contract List Report 
f. JDE, E-Supplier and B2G Contract List Report 
g. B2G Certification List Report 
h. E-Supplier, B2G Contract list Report 
i. E-Suppler, B2G Contract List Report 
j. E-Supplier, B2G Contract List Report 
k. E-Supplier, B2G Contract List Report 
l. B2G Certification List Report 
m. B2G Certification List Report 
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n. Not Available 
o. MBE, WBE, DBE B2G 
p. E-Supplier, JDE 
q. E-Supplier 
r. E-Supplier 
s. No 
t. E-Supplier 
u. Not Available  
v. No 

Greater Orlando Aviation Authority ( Yes to all except; c. if applicable, j if 
vendor supplied, n if provided, items s through v not applicable) All are 
available except s,t,u,v.   
Orange County Public Schools  

a.  Yes, Each vendor is assigned a unique vendor number 
in SAP, The vendor’s FEIN is found within the vendors 
master record (SAP) 

b. Yes, The firm’s name is included in the SAP vendor 
database 

c. Yes, The firms local address is included in the SAP 
vendor database 

d. Yes, The firm’s local city is included in the SAP vendor 
database.  If the vendor has a separate headquarter 
address (e.g. for payments) then the information is 
included in the vendor database. 

e. Yes, The firm’s local state code is included in the SAP 
vendor database 

f. Yes, The firm’s local zip code is included in the SAP 
vendor database 

g. This may or may not be so indicated in the SAP vendor 
database 

h. A vendor contact name is included in the SAP vendor 
database for most vendors 

i. If there is a contact person listed, then his/her phone 
number may be listed in the SAP vendor database 

j. The vendor’s fax number is included in the vendor 
master record 

k. If there is a contact person listed, then his/her email 
address may be included in the SAP vendor database 

l. The business owner’s gender is not maintained for 
prime vendors.  If the firm is certified MWBE 

m. Then his/her gender may be maintained in the OBO 
Access database 

n. The business owner’s race in not maintained for prime 
vendors.  If the firm is certified MWBE then his/her race 
may be maintained in OCPS 

o. If the vendor is a certified MWBE vendor listed in OCPS 
OBO database then the firm’s certification as a MWBE 
or LDB is so indicated 
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p. Yes, The commodity and service codes for the firm’s 
primary area are maintained for prime (SAP) and 
MWBE firms (Access) 

q. Yes, The commodity and text for the firm’s primary area 
are maintained for prime (SAP) and MWBE firms 
(Access). 

r. If the vendor is a certified MWBE vendor listed in OCPS 
OBO database then their certification as a MWBE or 
LDB is so indicated 

s. This information is not maintained 
t. This information is not maintained 
u. This information is not maintained 
v. This information is included 

 
Question:  Please clarify how the fiscal year is defined for each Consortium 
member? 
 
Answer:  Orange County (October 1 – September 30) 
           City of Orlando (October 1 – September 30) 
               Orange County Public Schools (July 1 – June 30) 
               Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (October 1 – September 30) 
 
Question:  Page 34, Item E. Scope of Services, states “determine the City’s 
Utilization.. data collected by the City using B2Gnow software..”  When was 
B2GNow implemented and when did it actually go live?  Attachment C presents the 
total dollars paid for purchasing, construction, and professional services.  Is data 
available and maintained in B2GNow?  Were there any transitions between contract 
and/or procurement systems during the study? 
 
Answer:  February 2010.  Yes, the data is available in B2G. 
 
Question:  Please clarify how the selected consultant should submit status/progress 
reports on the study.  Is it expected that the selected consultant will provide a 
status/progress report to each Consortium member?  Summary status report based 
on our experience is successfully completing consortia disparity studies, a status 
report is developed monthly (as deemed necessary), which specifically discuss and 
provides an update on each member.  Will this format be acceptable? 
 
Answer:  A monthly status report as necessary specifically discussing and providing 
an update on each member is acceptable. 
 
Question:  Page 36, Item 1.1 Background, states “the DBE, ACDBE, M/WBE and 
LDB programs cross all facets.. procurement of goods and services, as well as retail, 
food and beverage concessions operations..”  Does the concessions operations 
include all (such as news/gift) concessions?  Is rental car included? 
 
Answer:  Yes, the concession includes the N/G, F/B, Car Rentals, Ground 
Transportation and Parking Garages. 
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Question:  Based on our experience in conducting studies for some of the largest 
airports in the United States, how concessions data is maintained can vary.  Please 
describe how the concessions and rental car (if applicable) data are maintained.  Is 
the data maintained in a central location?  What is the format of the data (such as 
hard copy, database, Microsoft Excel).  Is the analysis to be based on the federal 
fiscal year?  Please clarify if the following is available. 
a. Concession 
b. Vendor Name 
c. Category or Type of Concession 
d. Joint Venture Indicator 
e. Gross Receipt/Revenues Amounts 
f. Gross Receipt/Revenues Date (Month, Day and Year) 
g. Business Owners Race. (certified and non-certified) 
h. Business Owners Ethnicity. (certified and non-certified) 
i. Business Owners Gender. (certified and non-certified) 
j. Business Owners Certification.  (e.g., MBE, WBE, DBE, LDB) 

 
Answer: All items a through j are available.  All data is maintained in electronic 
format with F/B and N/G data in excel.  Car rental data is in both word and excel.  
Data is also available in Oracle. 
 
Question:  Page 41, Item 2.2 Scope of Services states “General procurement 
purchases and construction information is currently contained in the Districts SAP 
software..”  Data for the proposed study period is available in SAP? Were there any 
transactions between contract and/or procurement systems during the study? 
 
Answer:  Orange County Public Schools has been using SAP software since July 
1999.  Thus, the purchase order and vendor information for the proposed period is 
contained within SAP. 
 
Question:  We are requesting that each Consortium member clarify the format ((hard 
copy, Microsoft Excel, database), location (centralized vs decentralized) of 
subcontractors data.  Please clarify if the following is available.  Is this data available 
on all firms that provided services at the subcontractor level?  Construction and 
construction related services (such as A&E)? 
a. Unique contract agreement number (linked to prime). 
b. Project Name 
c. Description of the project 
d. Unique vendor identification number, such as FEIN, Vendor ID 
e. Vendor (Firm) name 
f. Business owners gender. (certified and non-certified) 
g. Business owners ethnicity. (certified and non-certified) 
h. Business Owners race. (certified and non-certified) 
i. Business Owners certification (e.g. MBE, SBE, DBE) 
j. Vendors local address or headquarter 
k. Contact person of the firm 
l. Contact persons telephone number 
m. Contact persons facsimile number 
n. Date subcontract was awarded (month, day, year) 
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o. Date payments were made 
p. Contract award amount 
q. Final amount paid to the firm 
r. Procurement codes that describes the services or goods provided 
s. Text description of procurement codes that describes the service or goods 

provided 
 

Answer:  Orange County (Data for all items are available, items f, g, and h are 
M/WBEs only) 
Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (Data for all items is available except item d) 
City of Orlando (This data is available in B2G) 

a. Yes, Project number 
b. Yes 
c. Somewhat, scope of work allocated to subs listed on B2G 
d. Yes 
e. Yes 
f. Yes, B2G Cert List Report 
g. Yes, B2G Cert List Report 
h. Not Available  
i. Yes, B2G – MBE, WBE, DBE 
j. Yes, B2G 
k. Yes, B2G 
l. Yes, B2G 
m. Yes, B2G 
n. Yes, B2G 
o. Yes, B2G 
p. Yes, B2G 
q. Yes, B2G 
r. No 
s. No 

Orange County Public Schools 
a. Yes, There is a unique contract number linked to the prime.  

This information may be in the purchase order or the Contract 
Administration database.  OCPS does not maintain the contract 
number between the prime and the subcontractors 

b. Yes, each district project has a unique name 
c. Yes, each district project has a project description 
d. Yes, each primary vendor has a unique vendor number.  The 

vendor’s FEIN is maintained within the vendor master record 
e. Yes, The primary vendor’s firm name is included in the vendor 

master record 
f. For MWBE firms, the business owner’s gender may be included 

in the OCPS OBO Access database. 
g. For MWBE firms, the business owner’s ethnicity may be 

included in the OCPS OBO Access database 
h. For MWBE firms, the business owner’s race may be included in 

the OCPS OBO Access database.  This information is not 
maintained for non-certified vendors 
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i. For MWBE and local developing firms, the business owner’s 
certification is maintained in the OCPS OBO Access database 

j. Yes, OCPS maintains the vendors local address for prime and 
MWBE firms 

k. Yes, The firm’s contact person is maintained for prime (SAP) 
and MWBE (Access database) firms 

l. Yes, The phone number for the firm is maintained and MWBE 
firms 

m. Yes, the facsimile number for the firm is maintained for prime 
and MWBE firms 

n. The contract date between the prime and the sub may be listed 
on the prime’s application for payment 

o. The date of payments to the prime is maintained within SAP. 
The dates of payments from the prime to the sub-contractor are 
not maintained 

p. The contract award amount to the prime is maintained.  The 
award amount from the prime to the sub-contractor may be on 
the payment verification form for MWBEs.  The award amount is 
not maintained for non-certified subs 

q. The final amount paid to the prime firm is maintained.  The final 
amount paid to MWBE subs is maintained.  The final amount 
paid to non-certified subs is not maintained 

r. Yes, The commodity service codes for the firm’s primary area 
are maintained for prime and MWBE firms 

s. Yes, the commodity and service codes for the firm’s primary 
area are maintained for prime (SAP) and MWBE firms (Access)   

 
Question:  Is data reported by primes in the Schedule of Sub-Contracting – M/WBE 
Participation during the proposed study period available in an electronic format (such 
Microsoft Excel, databases, data management systems)?   
 
Answer: Orange County (Microsoft Excel) 

Orange County Public Schools (The payments from primes to MWBE sub-     
contractors is maintained in an access database 

Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (Yes data is in electronic format) 
City of Orlando (Yes, Database) 
 

Question:  We are requesting that each Consortium member respond to the 
following. 

  
a. Is data maintained on firms that teamed as subcontractor with unsuccessful 

bidders or proposers?  If so, please clarify the format.  Is the Schedule of 
Subcontracting  M/WBE participation form or similar data maintained on these 
subcontractors? 

b. Is data maintained on firms that proposed/bid on projects were unsuccessful?  
Please clarify the format of this data.  Is the following available? 

a. Bid number 
b. Contract Number 
c. Description of Project 
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d. Firms that bid 
e. Bid amount 

 
Answer:  City of Orlando ( Yes, Excel, - MWBE bid summary) 

Greater Orlando Aviation Authority (Yes, data is maintained on firms 
that proposed with unsuccessful bidders/proposers. It is kept 
electronically.  
Orange County Public Schools (Yes, hard copy within the bid book) 
Orange County (Yes, Orange County maintains this information for 
primes and sub-contracts for certain project using Microsoft Excel or 
Microsoft Access.  Yes, Orange County maintains similar data on the 
sub- 
- 
Sub- contractors of all projects with M/WBE participation). 

 
Question:  The County and City provided expenditure and MWBE summaries.  
Will you please provide similar reports from the Airport and Schools? 
 
Answer: See attachment B for the Greater Orlando Aviation Authority and 
attachment C for Orange County Public Schools 
 
Question:  Proposers can earn additional credit for utilizing service disabled 
veterans (SDV), do any of the entities maintain SDV utilization and will SDV be 
included in any of the reports? 
 
Answer:  Orange County (Only since the program inception on 10/31/11) 
               City of Orlando N/A 
 
Question: Are Exhibits A-E (pages 73-77 of the RFP PDF document) required to 
be submitted with our proposal? 
 
Answer:  No these along with the insurance accord form will only be required 
from the awarded firm before the contract can be executed. 

 
3. Pre-Proposal information for M/WBE Utilization see attachment D  

 
 

4. All other specifications, terms and conditions remain the same. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA 
 
a. The bidder/proposer shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum by completing 

the applicable section in the solicitation or by completion of the 
acknowledgement information on the addendum.  Either form of 
acknowledgement must be completed and retuned not later than the date and 
time for receipt of the bid or proposal. 

 
b. Receipt acknowledged by: 
 
____________________________________  _______________________ 
Authorized Signer           Date Signed 
 
___________________________________ 
Title 
 
___________________________________ 
Name of Bidder/Proposer  
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